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Dear Chair Lee and Members:

COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT (CPA) AND CHANGE IN

ZONING (CIZ) FOR THE QUEEN KA/VHUMANU CENTER AT
275 WEST KAAHUMANUAVENUE,KAHULUI,MAUI, HAWAII

(ZPA2023-00005)

SUBJECT:

The Department of Planning (Department) is transmitting for your review and action the proposed
CPA and CIZ, summarized as follows:

PROPOSAL

Action CPA and CIZ

Queen Kaahumanu CenterApplicant
Owner Same as Applicants

For CPA: (2) 3-7-002:020 (Por.), 027
For CIZ: (2) 3-7-002:020, 021,023, 025, 027

Tax Map Key

275 West Kaahumanu Avenue, Kahului, Island of Maui, HawaiiAddress

For CPA; Approximately 6.84 acres
For CIZ: Approximately 33.8 acres

Area

MAIN LINE (808) 270-7735 / CURRENT DIVISION (808) 270-8205 / LONG RANGE DIVISION (808) 270-7214 / ZONING DIVISION (808) 270-7253
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PROPOSAL

Parcel 020Current Land Use

Designations State: Urban District

Maui Island Plan: Urban Growth Boundary/Outside Protected Areas
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan: Business/Commercial and Hea\7 Industrial

Title 19, Zoning: M-2 Heavy Industrial District
Other: Within the SMA

Parcel 021

State: Urban District

Maui Island Plan: Urban Growth BoundaryVOutside Protected Areas
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan: Business/Commercial

Title 19, Zoning: M-2 Heavy Industrial District
Other: Within the SMA

Parcel 023

State: Urban District

Maui Island Plan: Urban Growth Boundary/Outside Protected Areas

Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan: Business/Commercial
Title 19, Zoning: M-2 Heavy Industrial District
Other: Within the SMA

Parcel 025

State: Urban District

Maui Island Plan: Urban Growth Boundary/Outside Protected Areas
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan: Business/Commercial

Title 19, Zoning: M-2 Heavy Industrial District
Other: Within the SMA

Parcel 027

State: Urban District

Maui Island Plan: Urban Growth Boundary/Outside Protected Areas
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan: Heavy Industrial

Title 19, Zoning: M-2 Heavy Industrial District
Other: Within the SMA
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PROPOSAL

The Maui County Council is proposing the Queen Kaahumanu Community Center
Revitalization and Infill Project. Currently, no development is proposed. As a result
of community feedback, the shopping center is proposed to be re-purposed as a
mixed-use development, consisting of affordable housing, retail, office, service and
open space so that residents can easily access goods and services. The properties
total approximately 33.8 acres.

Brief Description

For land use and zoning consistency, a CPA is proposed from ‘Heavy Industrial' to
■Business/Commercial’ and a CIZ from ‘M-2, Heavy Industrial’ District to ‘B-3,

Central Business’ District.		

Held by Maui Planning Commission (Commission) on January 23, 2024 at the
Liquor Control Room at the Maui County Service Center in Kahului, Maui, Hawaii
and virtually via Bluejeans.

Six people provided oral testimony in support of the project at the Commission
meeting.

Public Hearing

Testimony

As of March 12, 2024, the Department had received seven letters of support for the
project, two of which were from people who also provided oral testimony. No
letters of opposition were received.

The Commission recommended approval of the CPA and CIZ by a vote of 6-0, with
2 excused absences.		

Recommendation

The Commission reviewed the subject proposal at its January 23, 2024, public meeting and
recommended approval of the CPA and CIZ. The Commission also recommended approval of the CIZ
with no conditions to the Maui County Council (Council):

As Council approval is required, the Department respectfully transmits the subject application for
review. Accordingly, attached are the following documents:

Proposed bill entitled, “A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE THE
WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION

FROM HEAVY INDUSTRIAL TO BUSINESS/COMMERCIAL FOR

APPROXIMATELY 6.75 ACRES IN KAHULUI, MAUI, HAWAII

IDENTIFIED AS TAX MAP KEYS (2) 3-7-002:020 (POR.) AND

(2) 3-7-002:027 (QUEEN KAAHUMANU CENTER), AND TO AMEND THE
TEXT OF THE WAILUKU-KAFIULUI COMMUNITY PLAN (2002), AS

AMENDED;’*

1.

Proposed bill entitled. “A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING
FROM M-2 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT TO B-3 CENTRAL BUSINESS

DISTRICT (CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR APPROXIMATELY 33.8 ACRES

2.
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IN KAHULUI, MAUI, HAWAII, IDENTIFIED AS TAX MAP KEYS

(2) 3-7-002:020, (2) 3-7-002:021, (2) 3-7-002:023, (2) 3-7-002:025, AND
(2) 3-7-002:027 (QUEEN KAAHUMANU CENTER;”

Letter dated January 25, 2024. regarding Maui Planning Commission's
'‘Recommendation of Approval of a Community Plan Amendment (CPA) from
'Heavy Industrial' to 'Business/Commerciar for Approximately 6.84 Acres, and
a Recommendation of Approval for a Change in Zoning (CIZ) from 'M-2, Heavy
Industrial' District to 'B-3. Central Business' District for Approximately 33.8
Acres for the Queen Kaahumanu Center Revitalization and Infill Project, Located
in Kahului. Maui, Hawaii: TMK's: (2) 3-7-002:020, 021, 023, 025, and 027

(ZPA2023-00005);”

3.

Department of Planning Report and Recommendation, including agency

comments and exhibits, to the Commission dated January 23, 2024;

4.

Minutes for the January 23, 2024 Commission meeting;5.

Application for Community Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning
(ZPA2023-00005); and

6.

Seven letters in support of the project.7.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Should you have any questions, please feel free to
transmit them to the Department via transmittal through the Office of the Mayor.

Sincerely,

KATE L. K. BLYSTONE

Planning Director

Attachments

Maui Planning Commission Members (PDF)

Danny A. Dias, Planning Program Administrator (PDF)
Clayton I. Yoshida, Secretary to Boards and Commissions Supervisor (PDF)
Kurt Wollenhaupt. Acting Land Use Planning Supervisor (PDF)
Tara K. Furukawa, Staff Planner (PDF)

xc:

KLKB:TKF:lp

K:\WP_DOCS\Planning\ZPA\2023\00005_OuccnKaahumanu\MPCVerbalRemarks.doc
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·9· Report of proceedings of the Maui Planning Commission

10· public meeting, held at the County of Maui Service
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·1· · · · · · · · ·KAHULUI, MAUI, HAWAII

·2· · · · · · · ·TUESDAY, JANUARY 23, 2024

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · ·-o0o-

·4

·5

·6· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Can we get a show

·7· of hands that the commissioners can hear us?

·8· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· There we go.

·9· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Okay.· Let's try

10· this again.

11· · · · · · Member Hipolito, are you present?

12· · · · · · COMMISSIONER HIPOLITO:· I'm in my office in

13· Kahului.

14· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Thank you.

15· · · · · · COMMISSIONER HIPOLITO:· Aloha, everyone.

16· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Lindsey?

17· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Aloha kakou.· I'm

18· here in Wailuku.· My son will be in and out as

19· needed.

20· · · · · · And, Chair, I was hoping to leave around

21· 1:00, and I can be back around 3:00, if that matters.

22· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· I think today since we have

23· quorum, we might be okay to proceed.· But (no audio)

24· cases at the end -- maybe it's my mic.

25· · · · · · Can you hear okay, Commissioner Lindsey?
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·1· Okay.· Yeah.· All right.· Thank you for that.

·2· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Deakos?

·3· · · · · · COMMISSIONER DEAKOS:· Aloha, everyone. I am

·4· in a hotel room in Vegas.· My wife is in here -- in

·5· the room with me.

·6· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Apo?

·7· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Blaine Apo?· Are you here,

·8· sir?· I don't see him.· Okay.

·9· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Kealoha, are

10· you present?

11· · · · · · COMMISSIONER KEALOHA:· Good morning.· I'm

12· here in Paia.· I'm by myself.

13· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· And, lastly, Member

14· Helekahi-Burns, are you present?· It does not look

15· like she is present.

16· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· Thank you for roll

17· call.

18· · · · · · I do just want to do a few -- yes?

19· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Sure.· Chair, this is Michael

20· Hopper.

21· · · · · · We -- I don't have a video of the

22· commissioners.· I don't know if others do, but it

23· looks like your audio is unmuted, but I cannot see

24· any of the commissioners.

25· · · · · · Do you have the camera on the

https://idepohawaii.com/


·1· commissioners?

·2· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· We do.· We can see them.

·3· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Oh, yeah, it's on now.

·4· Great.· Perfect.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Oh, "of us."

·6· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Right.· Yeah, you were --

·7· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· The ones that are present.

·8· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· -- you were muted and you're

·9· unmuted.· Yes, right.· Now we can see you.

10· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you, Mr. Hopper.· Okay,

11· so for housekeeping, I'll let Mr. Smith introduce the

12· first item.

13· · · · · · I do want to remind testimony -- testifiers

14· that your testimony is three minutes.· And while I

15· can give grace for you to end your sentence, it's

16· really important that we are, as best, fair to all

17· people who testify.

18· · · · · · And I don't know, for those who have never

19· testified before, you could easily, even in the car

20· before you come, just time yourself on your

21· testimony.· And if you find that you go over three

22· minutes, then go back and cut the stuff that wasn't

23· as important.

24· · · · · · So these are helpful tips that you can do

25· as a testifier because we want to hear the weight,
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·1· and we want to understand your perspective.· And it's

·2· hard when it gets cut off.

·3· · · · · · So, yes, people do time themselves, and

·4· I've done it a ton of times.· And it's effective, and

·5· it's really good for us to hear the important pieces.

·6· So please do that.· And that way we can be respectful

·7· of everyone's time and also do our best to give

·8· everyone a fair share of testimony time.

·9· · · · · · So having said that, let's go to the first

10· item.

11· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Good morning.· We

12· do have one public hearing before us this morning.

13· It's identified as Agenda Item B Number 1.

14· · · · · · We are here to transmit for your

15· consideration, planning commissioners -- Council

16· Resolution Number 23-221 is concerning a community

17· plan amendment from heavy industrial to

18· business/commercial for the Queen Kaahumanu Center.

19· · · · · · Also for your consideration is a bill for

20· change of zoning from heavy -- M-2 heavy industrial

21· to B-3 central business district.

22· · · · · · We do have staff planner Tara Furukawa here

23· this morning to present the item.

24· · · · · · And I will transition it over to you, Tara.

25· · · · · · MS. FURUKAWA:· Okay.· Aloha kakahiaka,
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·1· commissioners.

·2· · · · · · This item is under your review because it's

·3· a council-initiated action by the Maui County Council

·4· for a Community Plan Amendment and Change of Zoning

·5· for the Queen Kaahumanu Center Revitalization and

·6· Infill Project.

·7· · · · · · A Community Plan Amendment is being sought

·8· from heavy industrial to business commercial for

·9· approximately 6.84 acres to enable land use

10· consistency with zoning for the proposed use.  A

11· change of zoning is also being sought from M-2 heavy

12· industrial to B-3 central business district for

13· approximately 33.8 acres.· The matter is being

14· referred to you because the planning commission must

15· make a recommendation to the county council.

16· · · · · · Michael and John Summers of Planning

17· Consultants Hawaii are the project consultants who

18· will present you with the proposed land use

19· entitlement changes, and I will return to you after

20· that with the department's recommendation.

21· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· That sounds great.

22· · · · · · Just state your name for the record.

23· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Sure.· My name is Michael

24· Summers.· I'm the president of Planning Consultants

25· Hawaii.· And thank you so much for having us here
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·1· today.· It's much appreciated.

·2· · · · · · This is a very important project for Maui,

·3· this entitlement change request for Queen Kaahumanu

·4· Center.· And so we're going to give you a PowerPoint

·5· presentation.· It's going to be a team effort.· We

·6· have folks that have flown over here from Miami and

·7· California and, of course, right here on Maui.· So

·8· we'll be sharing the podium.

·9· · · · · · I'd just like to take a minute and

10· introduce our team.· So we have with us John

11· Mitchell.· And John has, like I said, flown over

12· representing the property owner, Starwood, all the

13· way from Miami.· And we have Lemore Czeisler from

14· Pacific Capital Retail Partners; and Kauwela

15· Bisquera, also for -- for Queen Kaahumanu Shopping

16· Center; and Marina Satoafaiga, who's also with

17· Pacific Capital Retail Partners.

18· · · · · · So with that, we're going to give you a

19· PowerPoint presentation.· It'll be a shared effort,

20· and we'll begin with John.· Thank you.

21· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· And as we do the PowerPoint,

22· commissioners online, we are going to lose our

23· ability to likely see you or not.· Okay, it looks

24· like we've got it working, because it looks like

25· they're going to have to utilize our staff computer.
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·1· · · · · · So in the event that changes -- we can see

·2· you now -- when I go for questioning, I'll need you

·3· to speak so that I can acknowledge you, please.

·4· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · MR. MITCHELL:· Good morning, everyone.· My

·6· name is John Mitchell.· I did come over from Miami

·7· yesterday.· But I tell you, as soon as I land here --

·8· I've been here three times recently -- it rejuvenates

·9· me every time.· I saw a beautiful rainbow coming in,

10· so I feel good.· I've got pep in my step --

11· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· I'm going to interrupt you.

12· And I really need you to get nice and cozy with the

13· mic --

14· · · · · · MR. MITCHELL:· Oh, okay.

15· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· -- because we do transcripts.

16· And, believe it or not, it just won't pick up your

17· voice.

18· · · · · · MR. MITCHELL:· No problem.

19· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you.· Sorry about that.

20· · · · · · MR. MITCHELL:· So I've been coming over to

21· the island for -- a couple times now since 2021.· And

22· I've visited the Queen Kaahumanu Center, and

23· "revitalized" might not be the word I would think.  I

24· think it's more of a reimagination of this -- this

25· property is what we're here for today.
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·1· · · · · · It doesn't seem to be functioning as well

·2· as it can, and my career I've spent trying to fix and

·3· address properties that have some issues, some

·4· problems.· When I toured this -- the center, it felt

·5· like it needed more diversification; that it could

·6· serve its community better.

·7· · · · · · And one of those pathways is to, you know,

·8· work on some additional diversification, potentially

·9· some housing, more community services, maybe more

10· food and beverage options, perhaps even some big box

11· retail, all of these options that don't exist today

12· and aren't in the plan.

13· · · · · · So when we came over -- we're here for the

14· M-2 heavy industrial zoning, it just doesn't seem

15· consistent with what a revitalization or

16· reimagination should be and could be.

17· · · · · · So I'm going to kick it off to my

18· colleagues here with Pacific Retail Partners to talk

19· about their efforts, where we're going next.

20· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Thank you.· I'll have

21· you just state your name for the record.

22· · · · · · MS. BISQUERA:· Aloha.· My name is Kauwela

23· Bisquera.· I'm general manager of Queen Kaahumanu

24· Center.· If that's loud enough?

25· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· It's wonderful.
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·1· · · · · · MS. BISQUERA:· Okay.· Thanks.· I didn't

·2· want to get scoldings.

·3· · · · · · Thank you, John.

·4· · · · · · I am here to talk about Queen Kaahumanu

·5· Center as a community resident born in Maui, raised

·6· on the Big Island, moved back to raise my one child.

·7· But I'm also here to talk about what it's like to

·8· manage a shopping center of this size but in a

·9· community as ours which is very unique to any other

10· place.

11· · · · · · As many of you may know, Queen Kaahumanu

12· Center made 50 years last year, huge for us here.  I

13· mean, we're hoping to make 50 more years as we

14· continue on.· But to continue on, we cannot continue

15· the state that we're currently in.

16· · · · · · We have over 570,000 square feet of

17· leasable -- leasable spaces, but the -- the -- where

18· the community -- where the shoppers -- where society

19· is now, it is not what they're looking for.· They're

20· looking for a place to shop, to live, to -- so it's

21· like that work-play balance -- shop, live, eat,

22· gather.

23· · · · · · We've been the gathering place, the heart

24· of Central Maui for over 50 years, and we want to

25· continue to be that.· And my part here with John from
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·1· Starwood as well as Pacific Retail Capital Partners

·2· is to remind them of that, of our community heart,

·3· and then as we move forward into reimagining what

·4· Queen Kaahumanu Center can be and make it more

·5· relevant to our community, that they remember that we

·6· are still the gathering place for our community.

·7· · · · · · We are honored supporters of over 100

·8· nonprofit organizations and their events at Queen

·9· Kaahumanu Center.· We -- from Maui Matsuri to the

10· disabilities awareness fair, Alzheimer's walk, Maui

11· Adult Day Care Centers Walk, we've held and sponsored

12· them at Queen Kaahumanu Center for over 20 years.

13· And we want to continue to do that, and we want to

14· make sure we have the space to continue to support

15· our community organizations.

16· · · · · · Hawaiian Steel Guitar Festival gifted us

17· with, I would say -- I think it's a 15-foot steel

18· guitar ukulele -- not steel guitar ukulele -- steel

19· guitar made out of koa wood, and they gifted it to us

20· because we continue to support them.· And so we want

21· to continue to keep that for our community, and that

22· is what I do here to make sure everybody remembers

23· that.· But I'm also here to remind you guys that

24· that's what we are.

25· · · · · · We also support arts.· We were the first

https://idepohawaii.com/


·1· one to have a large format public art in Kahului.  I

·2· mean, we worked with Small Time (sic) Big Art and

·3· mommy -- Maui Public Art Corps to garner this

·4· beautiful art piece.· And it is -- isn't the namesake

·5· of Queen Kaahumanu, but it was -- it was more of the

·6· essence of the women back in Native Hawaiian days

·7· where the men were fighting, the women protected

·8· Kahului as a -- because it was our burial grounds for

·9· our ancestors back in the day.· And so this was --

10· this shows of our fierce women looking over Kahului.

11· · · · · · We also -- we are also working with other

12· nonprofits to -- to bring more of Maui public art to

13· Queen Kaahumanu.· We are working with a local artist

14· named -- I'm going to butcher her name, so we're not

15· going to say her name right now, but she just did

16· Children's Justice Center.· And so we are working

17· with her to do another mural inside the shopping

18· center.

19· · · · · · And so that is what Queen Kaahumanu Center

20· is.· We are the heart and the gathering place for

21· Central Maui.· Now, the reality is we are slowly

22· dying.· We have only 41% of our spaces occupied for

23· long term, and what that means is anything past

24· three years.· Anything less than three years, tenants

25· tend to -- the minute there's a slowdown, they can
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·1· pull out.· And so that leaves us at a risk of 59% of

·2· our -- our shopping center risk of being empty.

·3· · · · · · As we all saw on the news, Sears left.· We

·4· also had other very big name brands leave us even

·5· though we tried our best to give them -- we gave them

·6· zero rent, and we said, just -- we just need you

·7· because our community needs you.· And that still

·8· couldn't keep them there.

·9· · · · · · And we are desperately trying to keep what

10· we have now.· We do have -- we are the only home to

11· the only Victoria's Secret and Bath & Body Works,

12· American Eagle, and these big brand corporate names

13· are very needed in our community.· And so we want to

14· make sure we keep those tenants here.

15· · · · · · And we are trying and negotiating with them

16· to keep them here because what they want to see is

17· reimagining of the center as well.· It's a dying

18· breed, the shopping center as it is.

19· · · · · · It's -- as you see across the world, you

20· will see multiuse; right?· Even Oahu has gone into

21· that, but we're not going to get into that.· But

22· we're not getting anywhere in what Oahu was doing.

23· But you can see that there needs to be a change.

24· There needs to be more than just shopping and retail

25· and restaurants.
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·1· · · · · · You've seen us in the news.· I don't think

·2· I have to remind you guys about us in the news.· We

·3· did go through a foreclosure a couple of years ago.

·4· And we're very thankful that Starwood has stepped up

·5· in -- to bring us out of that, and in support of

·6· bringing us forward as well.

·7· · · · · · And so you can -- you can move on with

·8· our -- as you can see, Sears we talked about.· And

·9· then just last year, our theatres, our beloved Queen

10· Kaahumanu Theaters had to close.· Consolidated, we

11· worked with them for over two years to try to keep

12· them to stay.· And it's just -- it just wasn't -- it

13· wasn't feasible for them, and we -- we understood

14· that.· But this is what's happening.

15· · · · · · And so when we talk to our big stores, or

16· even our local mom-and-pop stores, like Ben Franklin

17· or Camellia Seeds or, like, One Eighty who's been

18· with us for almost 20 years, they want to know, like,

19· what's happening to the shopping center, and they'll

20· come to me.

21· · · · · · And I'm assuring them that given the county

22· support that we can reimagine it, and we can bring

23· back to -- Queen Kaahumanu Center to its glory days,

24· per se, and bring back the first.· I mean, if you're

25· born and raised on Maui, you had many firsts to
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·1· happen at Queen Kaahumanu Center.

·2· · · · · · I won't get into my first, that's a

·3· little -- but my son had his many firsts -- his first

·4· date was at Queen Kaahumanu Center, and you know I

·5· have a little bit of an in with security, so that was

·6· great to have it there.

·7· · · · · · But we -- you know, people come there for

·8· their first earring piercings because of Claire's or

·9· they come there for their first -- their parents

10· finally let them have a Starbucks.· So we want to

11· continue that.· And I tell our local stores -- and I

12· told all our stores that we will continue that, and

13· we want to continue that.· We just need to get there.

14· · · · · · And so what we did is we wanted to hear

15· more from the community.· So we did hold some

16· community meetings with some special groups.

17· · · · · · Oh, sorry.· Before I get to that, we did

18· launch a survey, an online survey that we pushed out

19· to all of our text subscribers or email newsletters

20· people just to ask them what they desired to see if

21· Queen Kaahumanu Center was able to be be reimagined.

22· And so we launched that in June of 2023.

23· · · · · · And the -- and then we also met with some

24· groups to hear what they wanted to say, some very

25· important groups out in the public such as Sierra
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·1· Club, Maui Tomorrow, Stand Up Maui, Maui Canoe Club,

·2· and the Rotary Clubs of Maui and Kahului.

·3· · · · · · So we did talk to them.· We did say that we

·4· want to reimagine Queen Kaahumanu Center, but we want

·5· to hear what you guys want to see.· We don't want to

·6· just build what we think is best, we want to build

·7· what community thinks is best at Queen Kaahumanu

·8· Center.

·9· · · · · · And so some of that results from the survey

10· was that 92 percent of them -- 92 percent of the

11· survey -- we had a response from surveys.· 97 percent

12· believe that there should be potential housing

13· solutions that can fit within multigenerational or

14· diverse community framework.

15· · · · · · And then 77 percent of people believe that

16· Queen Kaahumanu Center should hire towards mixed-use

17· developments that incorporate housing, retail, and

18· commercial spaces to create a more vibrant and

19· economic -- economic sustainable future.

20· · · · · · Just some graphs of what I just mentioned.

21· · · · · · So when we talked to the outreach and we

22· summarize what the groups that mentioned to us and

23· what the survey mentioned, this is what we heard:

24· the community size, a green and communal space.

25· That's our gathering.· That's a park.· That's --
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·1· that's what our community wants -- I want to see.

·2· · · · · · Diverse housing options targeted to Maui

·3· residents, we all know this.· We all know we're --

·4· how bad of a housing crisis we're in right now.· But

·5· we want to make sure that we can build housing that

·6· our Maui local residents can afford and can live for

·7· multigeneration.

·8· · · · · · Restaurants, services, and arts; maintain a

·9· gathering place designed in keeping with sense of

10· place.· So not so large, I'm assuming.· Links to

11· neighboring land uses, preservation of the Queen

12· Kaahumanu statue, absolutely.· It's -- we're her

13· namesake; we're not going to let her go.· I'm not

14· getting that bad juju on me.

15· · · · · · Native landscape preservation, preservation

16· of trees, and support mom-and-pop stores, that's

17· absolutely everything I believe in as well.

18· · · · · · And that is absolutely everything that I

19· convey and communicate with our Starwood and Pacific

20· Retail and hope that when we do get to move forward,

21· hopefully with your support, that we will be able to

22· provide this to our community as it's so needed

23· badly.· Mahalo.· Thank you.

24· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you very much.

25· · · · · · And, commissioners, if you're wondering,
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·1· after the presentation we'll go into testimony.· And

·2· then we'll have opportunity to question each of these

·3· presenters.

·4· · · · · · Please -- yes.· State your name for the

·5· record.

·6· · · · · · MS. CZEISLER:· Aloha, everybody.· My name

·7· is Lemore Czeisler.· Oh, I don't have to stand on my

·8· tippy toes.· I can just move this.· Great.

·9· · · · · · Thank you, everybody, for having me.· I'm

10· Lemore Czeisler with Pacific Retail.· And the state

11· of the mall industry across the nation and certainly

12· even across the globe is in this similar or same

13· amount of, let's say, disrepair and in need of

14· revitalization.

15· · · · · · So I want to state two things.· One is that

16· the Queen Kaahumanu Center is not alone in this

17· position.· This is happening because of Amazon.· It

18· happened because of COVID.· It is not alone in this

19· position.

20· · · · · · But the second point I want to make is that

21· despite it not being alone, and this happens

22· everywhere, there is no cookie-cutter response to the

23· revitalization.· It has to be unique to every single

24· place.

25· · · · · · And frankly, it has to be unique even to --

https://idepohawaii.com/


·1· Kahului would be completely different from a response

·2· on the west side of even Maui.· So we are not just

·3· saying there is a blanket response to revitalizing

·4· malls.· There is not.· We are being very thoughtful

·5· and specific about that.

·6· · · · · · And so, yes, the -- you can read the stats

·7· there; the numbers of the malls are declining

·8· rapidly.· And you have essentially only really 6,000

·9· department stores left in 2020, and that has

10· decreased since then in the US -- in the whole of the

11· US.

12· · · · · · So we can go to the next slide.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · So what is universal is to have more

14· functional, resilient, and sustainable mall spaces.

15· So there are certain parameters that this community

16· deserves that are universal urban planning principles

17· that this community deserves, that all communities

18· deserve, and we would want to apply that to here.

19· · · · · · Again, there is no cookie-cutter answer.

20· But there are universal principles, and that is

21· adapting them to be relevant, and that's relevant to

22· this specific community.

23· · · · · · So that means that in some places, you

24· know, maybe local mom-and-pop shops are not that

25· popular; they're not needed.· That's not the case
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·1· here.· That -- the case here is that they are still

·2· very relevant, and they are still working at Queen

·3· Kaahumanu Center, for instance.

·4· · · · · · And to transform to mixed use, that means

·5· that that is sustainable communities.· That means

·6· that people can live and go to the grocery store five

·7· minutes away.· They don't have to pack up their kids

·8· and their -- their -- all of their stuff, drive and

·9· come back for, you know, miles and miles in order to

10· get their groceries or anything else.

11· · · · · · Their social spaces -- people are becoming

12· more isolated in all communities across the globe.

13· And so how do we solve that?· We create spaces,

14· social hubs for people to come, through food, through

15· open space.· Maybe it's through pickleball.· Maybe

16· it's through -- there are, you know, different ways

17· to bring people together.· Queen Kaahumanu Center has

18· always done that.· And we want to -- for it to

19· continue to do that.

20· · · · · · Optionality -- again, recreational spaces,

21· entertainment.· Why not have somewhere outdoors where

22· you could have -- you know, maybe at a brewery or --

23· or anywhere outdoors to have, you know, kamaaina

24· nights to be in a more sort of concert environment

25· and bring people together outside while they eat,
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·1· while they drink, while their kids play outside, and

·2· they can watch them.

·3· · · · · · And involve -- evolving those spaces so

·4· that we can socialize, relax, and engage with one

·5· another; again, instead of constantly doing

·6· everything through Amazon and on our phones.

·7· · · · · · Okay.· Next slide, please.

·8· · · · · · And, again -- so these are some of the

·9· images that we have around -- around the US and in

10· Hawaii where we are envisioning spaces where people

11· can come.· There should be more services to the

12· community, more places for people to do -- maybe it

13· is their hula outdoors, or maybe it is checkers.  I

14· should have a pickleball picture up there; we do not.

15· But yoga, places for people to come together and do

16· those activities together, perhaps libraries, school

17· events.· People can come and have their social events

18· out there, festivals, Lunar New Year.· People can

19· come and be together in those outdoor spaces.

20· · · · · · So next slide, please.

21· · · · · · What happens when you start to activate

22· these places is that safety increases because dead

23· spaces are more prone to not being so safe.· Your tax

24· revenue increases, and the economic value of all of

25· the stores inside increases.· There's more community
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·1· engagement and foot traffic.· So having a residential

·2· component there creates foot traffic.· And then it

·3· gets a momentum for stores to come in and the

·4· environment to become -- not feel like a dead space.

·5· · · · · · And so all of those metrics get elevated

·6· once you bring people in.· The Queen Kaahumanu Center

·7· needs people; it needs people to be there.· And it's

·8· going to rely on that because, otherwise, Amazon just

·9· takes everything over.· It needs the people there.

10· · · · · · And, again, open space plays a vital role.

11· And housing -- having a diverse range of housing and

12· having people who live in Kahului, and Maui residents

13· there is essential.· We need people who are going to

14· be there all year round to shop, to work, to play, to

15· do all of those things, not necessarily people coming

16· and going.

17· · · · · · So the mixed-use community provides, you

18· know, residential housing, affordable and workforce

19· housing.· And then we'll also just have a symbiotic

20· relationship between those businesses and the

21· residents.· The neighborhood and the community will

22· be forged much more than it is now where everything

23· now is disparate.

24· · · · · · This is just one example of something

25· that's happening out in another part of -- of the US
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·1· where they are taking a huge asphalt parking lot and

·2· turning -- turning it into a community hub.

·3· · · · · · Thank you very much.

·4· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Again, Mike Summers,

·5· Planning Consultants Hawaii.· And so I'll just be

·6· taking you through the project area, the

·7· entitlements, and some next steps.

·8· · · · · · So, again, the project area comprises

·9· 5 parcels which totals about 33.8 acres.· And I know

10· you all are very much aware of the existing uses, but

11· I'll just say it again.· Queen Kaahumanu Center,

12· Foodland, other related accessories, this is an

13· important one, 2,728 parking spaces.

14· · · · · · So this is our aerial location map.· And

15· there are a number of lessons you can learn from this

16· map.· First thing that -- when you look at this, you

17· can really see that Queen K -- Queen Kaahumanu Center

18· is the heart of Kahului.· I mean, you can tell that

19· just from the scale of the building, its central

20· location, from the land uses around it, et cetera.

21· · · · · · What's also interesting is that, you know,

22· there's a lot of infrastructure around this site.· So

23· if I just take my pointer, hopefully, it'll work.

24· Maybe it won't on this.· But to the north, we have

25· Kaahumanu Avenue.· And to the east, we have Kane
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·1· Street.· We have Kamehameha Avenue to the southeast

·2· and Wakea Avenue and -- basically to the south and

·3· the west.

·4· · · · · · And I think that's important because this

·5· is really your classic urban infill opportunity.

·6· You've got the infrastructure around it, you've got

·7· an underutilized space, and you have a lot of

·8· activity generators going on around it.

·9· · · · · · So what are those activity generators?· So

10· the Kahului Harbor, our major harbor for Maui, big

11· job generator; Maui College, a big job generator and

12· our premier educational institution on Maui.· If you

13· look to the east, we're going to have this Kahului

14· Civic Center and the bus hub.· Again, very important

15· community service; it's going to help regenerate and

16· revive the area and very proximate to the Queen

17· Kaahumanu Center.

18· · · · · · We have hotel uses along the shoreline.

19· Again, the Queen Kaahumanu Center is very important

20· for those uses.· And then we have this big band of

21· residential that tucks right up against the center.

22· So you can see it's an area that needs this heart,

23· and this is a really good opportunity for infill

24· development.

25· · · · · · And this is just kind of a different image
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·1· which shows that.· Again, you can see in yellow all

·2· the single and multifamily residences that surround

·3· this site.· And they're all very close -- I mean, not

·4· all of them, but many of these residences are within

·5· a five-minute walk to the center.· And then, of

·6· course, we have major public facilities I already

·7· spoke to, and to the east an area where you're

·8· probably going to see a lot of revitalization in the

·9· future.

10· · · · · · Next.

11· · · · · · So the community plan map shows our

12· requests, essentially, but you can see that the

13· 33.8 acre parcel is split community-plan designated.

14· Approximately 27 acres is business commercial.· And

15· then you can see that odd little shape down there at

16· the bottom, that is heavy industrial.· And I'll speak

17· to the requests later, but that's the existing

18· condition.· And then, of course, you can see the

19· heavy industrial to the south and the west.

20· · · · · · Next.· All right.

21· · · · · · And so here's our zoning map.· And, again,

22· you can see the parcel outlined by black; and all of

23· it is M-2 heavy industrial.· Okay.

24· · · · · · So, again, it's kind of ironic when you

25· look at this map and you see all that residential
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·1· around it to think that the zoning for the heart of

·2· the community is M-2 heavy industrial.· It just

·3· doesn't really seem to make a lot of sense.

·4· · · · · · Next.

·5· · · · · · The project area is in the Special

·6· Management Area.· Importantly, the project area is

·7· not within the sea level rise exposure area for 3.2

·8· feet.

·9· · · · · · Next.

10· · · · · · And, likewise, the property is not in the

11· flood hazard area.· It's within Zone X which is an

12· area of minimal flooding.

13· · · · · · Next.

14· · · · · · I'll just briefly talk about next steps and

15· future.· And for planners, when you look towards the

16· future, you always want to go back to your community

17· planning documents because essentially those are an

18· articulation of a community's desire, the pattern of

19· development, types of services you have, the

20· character of a community.

21· · · · · · In Maui County, we have actually a very

22· robust series of planning documents.· We have the

23· Countywide Policy Plan which provides a broad

24· hierarchy of policies for the community.· They help

25· define and develop the island plans and the community
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·1· plans.

·2· · · · · · We also have, as I mentioned, the island

·3· plan, Maui Island Plan, which is a regional planning

·4· document.· It allocates urban growth boundaries and

·5· population growth and plans for major public

·6· facilities and establishes a parameter for

·7· development within the community plan districts.

·8· · · · · · And then of course, our community plan

·9· documents.· It's really talking about the sequence of

10· development, the character development within each

11· community plan region.

12· · · · · · So, again, as a planner, it's important to

13· ask yourself, well, is this request consistent with

14· our community plan documents?· So beginning with the

15· Countywide Policy Plan, there are three policies I'm

16· just going to speak to you very quickly.

17· · · · · · The first is a policy to:

18· · · · · · · · · · Encourage redevelopment

19· · · · · · · · · · and infill in existing

20· · · · · · · · · · communities on lands

21· · · · · · · · · · intended for urban use to

22· · · · · · · · · · protect productive

23· · · · · · · · · · farmland and open-space

24· · · · · · · · · · resources.

25· · · · · · But then the question becomes, well, how do
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·1· we do this?

·2· · · · · · Well, we:

·3· · · · · · · · · · Promote infill housing in

·4· · · · · · · · · · urban areas.

·5· · · · · · And secondly, we:

·6· · · · · · · · · · Redevelop commercial areas

·7· · · · · · · · · · with a mixture of

·8· · · · · · · · · · affordable

·9· · · · · · · · · · residential/business uses

10· · · · · · · · · · where appropriate.

11· · · · · · Next.

12· · · · · · Now, our Maui Island Plan has a lot of

13· language that speaks to Wailuku-Kahului.· And one of

14· the major challenges that has been identified in the

15· Maui Island Plan is a lack of housing choices.

16· · · · · · And I think if you go back and you look at

17· that exhibit that I showed where you had all that

18· red -- or I'm sorry, all that yellow surrounding the

19· center, probably 80 or 90 percent of that is single

20· family.· There's not a lot of multifamily in this

21· community.

22· · · · · · And so, one of the statements in the plan

23· is that:

24· · · · · · · · · · This marked disparity

25· · · · · · · · · · between single family and
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·1· · · · · · · · · · multifamily residential

·2· · · · · · · · · · units provides residents

·3· · · · · · · · · · with limited housing

·4· · · · · · · · · · options in the Central

·5· · · · · · · · · · Maui region.

·6· · · · · · So in order to address this, the Maui

·7· Island Plan established, basically, a planned growth

·8· area.· So it's in the plan, and it's called a planned

·9· growth area.· And it identifies that area as a

10· Kahului infill and redevelopment area.· And for this

11· area, it basically says:

12· · · · · · · · · · Much of Kahului is

13· · · · · · · · · · significantly

14· · · · · · · · · · underutilized, and

15· · · · · · · · · · redevelopment will

16· · · · · · · · · · strengthen the economy,

17· · · · · · · · · · provide diverse housing

18· · · · · · · · · · opportunities within close

19· · · · · · · · · · proximity to jobs,

20· · · · · · · · · · services, while protecting

21· · · · · · · · · · agricultural lands and

22· · · · · · · · · · open spaces.

23· · · · · · Next.

24· · · · · · I think just another really important

25· policy in the Maui Island Plan, as it says:
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·1· · · · · · · · · · Ensure higher density,

·2· · · · · · · · · · compact urban communities,

·3· · · · · · · · · · infill, and redevelopment.

·4· · · · · · And I think the plan is recognizing that,

·5· in the context of our housing issues and the pattern

·6· of development, that we need to think about more

·7· efficiently using our urban areas that are currently

·8· underutilized.· It also makes, I think, a very

·9· interesting statement that says:

10· · · · · · · · · · The county will promote

11· · · · · · · · · · (through incentives,

12· · · · · · · · · · financial participation,

13· · · · · · · · · · expedited project review,

14· · · · · · · · · · infrastructure/public

15· · · · · · · · · · facilities support) urban

16· · · · · · · · · · infill and redevelopment.

17· · · · · · And I think that's significant because

18· we're here today with a council-initiated request.

19· This is not a private developer request.· This is

20· coming from the county council.

21· · · · · · And, finally, the Community Plan wants to

22· make sure that:

23· · · · · · · · · · Building form and

24· · · · · · · · · · character maintains

25· · · · · · · · · · compatible scale
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·1· · · · · · · · · · relationships between the

·2· · · · · · · · · · existing low-rise

·3· · · · · · · · · · development in the area

·4· · · · · · · · · · and other uses,

·5· · · · · · essentially to maintain the sense of place

·6· of our community.

·7· · · · · · Next.

·8· · · · · · And so, as I mentioned, this is a council

·9· resolution -- council-initiated zoning request.

10· There -- we've already talked about this, but there

11· are two things being requested.

12· · · · · · One is to change the Wailuku-Kahului

13· Community Plan and land use designation from heavy

14· industrial to business commercial for 6.83 acres and

15· to amend the text of the community plan -- the

16· Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan;

17· · · · · · Secondly, to change the zoning from M-2

18· heavy industrial to B-3 central business district for

19· the entire 33.8 acres.· And importantly, there is no

20· specific development plan being proposed today.

21· · · · · · Next.

22· · · · · · So just coming back to our community plan

23· map, you can see we're proposing to change the purple

24· there that's within the boundary to red which is

25· central business -- or I'm sorry, business commercial
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·1· in the community plan.

·2· · · · · · Next.

·3· · · · · · And, here, you can kind of see that area.

·4· So off of Wakea Avenue, you see the driveway going

·5· into the center.· And this basically -- this heavy

·6· industrial cuts right through the property all the

·7· way around, basically almost right through the

·8· parking garage, et cetera.· So you can see that

·9· that's a very disruptive designation if you want to

10· master plan this property.

11· · · · · · Next.

12· · · · · · Then the question becomes, well, what are

13· the benefits of this request?· The first, allow

14· mixed-use development within the entirety of the

15· property.· Second, provides the most appropriate

16· designation for the existing uses that are already

17· there, and it provides the foundation for more

18· holistic and effective planning.

19· · · · · · Next.

20· · · · · · Now, as I mentioned, this request also

21· includes a change to the text of the community plan.

22· And, basically, what that does is it recognizes this

23· area, the Queen Kaahumanu Center in the planning

24· document, and it provides a framework for how the

25· project area might be developed in the future with
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·1· some general guiding principles based on community

·2· support.

·3· · · · · · What might those be?· One, provide a mix of

·4· uses; incorporate multifamily housing to create

·5· diverse housing opportunity; create or maximize the

·6· delivery of workforce and affordable housing, and

·7· that's done through a public-private partnership

·8· agreement; incorporate place-based urban design, this

·9· is very important to foster sustainability, respect

10· for culture, and, importantly, the legacy of Queen

11· Kaahumanu; compatible scale building relationships;

12· use of native trees.· And I think this is critical,

13· safer connections and access to the future Kahului

14· Civic Center and transit hub and harbor.· And I might

15· also say the surrounding neighborhoods would be

16· important.

17· · · · · · Next.

18· · · · · · And so then you're seeing that big area of

19· purple changing to red for the entire property, so it

20· becomes central business district instead of heavy

21· industrial.

22· · · · · · And what are the benefits?· Well, it makes

23· the zoning consistent with the community plan.

24· Secondly, it permits multifamily residential uses;

25· and, importantly, M-2 does not permit multifamily
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·1· residences.

·2· · · · · · It allows for mixed-use residential

·3· development.· The B-3 uses already are consistent

·4· with the existing uses at the center.· And it

·5· prevents hazardous and offensive users from

·6· potentially cropping up on the site.

·7· · · · · · Next.

·8· · · · · · So quickly, I'm going to speak to some of

·9· the zoning conditions that are proposed in the bill.

10· So, first, it is being proposed that the maximum

11· height limit for the site be 90 feet.· Now, in the

12· central business district, the maximum height limit

13· is 144 feet, and that caused quite a lot of angst

14· amongst some members of the community.

15· · · · · · So the idea is to keep it what it is today

16· which is 90 feet in the heavy -- M-2 heavy industrial

17· district.· Also, that is the same height limit for

18· the neighboring properties that are zoned B-2.· So to

19· the east, I pointed out all that area zoned B-2

20· community business district.· It all has a 90-foot

21· height limit.

22· · · · · · Secondly, to reduce the required parking.

23· Right now, it would be two stalls per multifamily

24· unit, to reduce that to a minimum of one off-street

25· parking space per multifamily unit with less than
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·1· 1500 square feet.

·2· · · · · · And the rationale for that is quite simple.

·3· First, obviously, it's going to reduce building costs

·4· and reduce housing costs.· Secondly, it will

·5· facilitate more efficient and better master planning

·6· for the site.· It's not going to be just massive

·7· amounts of concrete.

·8· · · · · · And finally, you know, there's some

·9· justification because with that size of a multifamily

10· unit, you're likely to have far less demand for

11· parking, especially in the context of a mixed-use

12· development at this location.

13· · · · · · Next.

14· · · · · · There's also a requirement for a

15· memorandum of agreement to create an effort to try to

16· create more affordable housing than what is currently

17· required through our existing workforce housing

18· ordinance.

19· · · · · · And in response to community concerns about

20· building mass and building heights and impact on view

21· corridors, viewsheds, there's a zoning condition to

22· require a visual-simulation study.· It's likely that

23· would have been done anyway in the SMA, but it's

24· there.

25· · · · · · Host community meetings and design
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·1· workshops before the development would go to planning

·2· commission, and also go to the UDRB.

·3· · · · · · And so the next steps for this matter would

·4· be for you folks to make your recommendations, then

·5· it would go to the county council.· It would be

·6· assigned to a committee.· The committee would review

·7· the two proposed bills that would be assigned to the

·8· full committee for a first and second hearing.· And,

·9· finally, the mayor would sign the ordinances.

10· · · · · · It's also important to note that before

11· this property would get developed, a major SMA permit

12· would be required.· And as you're all very familiar

13· with, the SMA permit is very rigorous.· It requires a

14· full development impact assessment with detailed

15· technical studies, notification of property owners,

16· publication in the Maui News, and, importantly, a

17· public hearing for you folks.

18· · · · · · So -- and so with that, our team is

19· available for comments.· Thank you.

20· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Before we do that, we

21· are going to go and open public testimony.· If you're

22· online and you can hear my voice and you are unable

23· to ask to testify through the chat function, we will

24· make space for you at the end of testimony.· So we'll

25· give Linda a second.· And reminding you that each

https://idepohawaii.com/


·1· testifier has three minutes.

·2· · · · · · Also, commissioners, because of our long

·3· day, I do not want to get into a rhythm of allowing

·4· testifiers to go beyond their three minutes with

·5· additional questions that were not commented.· So as

·6· a reminder, you can ask questions for clarification

·7· on something they already said in their testimony,

·8· but I will not allow someone to continue on with

·9· their testimony past three minutes.· So please keep

10· that in mind.

11· · · · · · I'll go ahead and start with the people in

12· the room so Linda can get ready for the online

13· people.

14· · · · · · Okay.· First up is John Mitchell.· Oh,

15· okay.· Zandra Amaral Crouse, can you come and state

16· your name for the record.· Good morning.· Thank you

17· for being here.· Once you state your name for the

18· record, you'll have three minutes.

19

20· Zandra Amaral Crouse testified as follows:

21· · · · · · MS. CROUSE:· Mahalo, Chair.· Aloha

22· kakahiaka (speaking Hawaiian) Zandra Amaral Crouse.

23· (Speaking Hawaiian).· It's a privilege to stand

24· before you.

25· · · · · · When I saw this on the agenda, for those of
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·1· you that I can see that -- who's a third, fourth

·2· generation here on Maui, I know you recall when the

·3· plantation went out and the immigrants, Portuguese --

·4· mines -- the Japanese, the Filipinos went out, they

·5· bought their house with the help of the -- HC&S.

·6· · · · · · They built homes, and they lived on the

·7· top.· And the bottom was their business where they

·8· made jewelry, they baked goods, they sold things,

·9· they made clothes, and a variety of things.· So this

10· kind of brings me back to old Maui.· In Paia, it was

11· prevalent in the plantation town.· In Wailuku, that

12· was very prevalent where my ancestors come from.

13· · · · · · And I have always thought of Queen

14· Kaahumanu, the past 50 years, as being the gathering

15· place of families.· This is where we could go watch

16· our children and grandchildren dance hula, get

17· together, play instruments.· And, of course, like the

18· sister -- the manager from Kaahumanu said, many of

19· them had their first dates there and are married and

20· gave us grandchildren.

21· · · · · · So it is my humble request that you see

22· that this does happen.

23· · · · · · However, when it comes to affordable

24· housing, we have heard this for many generations,

25· over four generations of which I am the fifth.· And
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·1· my only hope is that there is some parameter in there

·2· to assure that it remains affordable to our local

·3· people.

·4· · · · · · Where I live in Kihei, that was affordable

·5· housing.· Now, most of it is rented out and people

·6· move back to the mainland.· These are not locals.

·7· These are people who came in, invested.· They rent it

·8· out, and they go.

·9· · · · · · Maui Lani, a new project here on Maui, it's

10· exactly the same thing.· I just wish we could somehow

11· put together a mechanism to keep track of our money

12· that we spend on affordable units.

13· · · · · · How many of them truly, truly go to our

14· local people and stay with our local people instead

15· of investors?

16· · · · · · Mahalo.· Thank you for your time.· I humbly

17· thank you for your attention and allowing me to

18· testify.· Mahalo.

19· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· One second.· Commissioners,

20· any questions?

21· · · · · · Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.

22· · · · · · Okay.· Mr. Uu, up next.
· · State your name
23· for the record and your three minutes will start.

24· ///

25· ///
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·1· Bruce Uu testified as follows:

·2· · · · · · MR. UU:· Aloha.· Aloha.· Mahalo for

·3· serving, and also Happy New Year.· I am Bruce Uu,

·4· lifelong member of Maui, executive director of Maui

·5· Nui Empowered.

·6· · · · · · I'm testifying on Item B, transmitting

·7· Council Resolution Number 23-221, to yourselves, the

·8· Maui Planning Commission.

·9· · · · · · I am 100 percent supportive of what's in

10· front of you, a potentially community-driven

11· revitalization and infill project, pre-existing,

12· reuse, recycle, re-envision, blank slate full of

13· potential that is currently severely underutilized.

14· I'm asking you, the commission, to be bold, to make

15· tough decisions, think big.

16· · · · · · Right after driving around Wailuku area

17· this morning, I'm just asking you to do what is

18· needed.

19· · · · · · My dentist's building, Maui Realty Suites,

20· it's six floors with a basement, so I'll call it

21· seven.· Our county building is nine stories.· Again,

22· no one lives there.

23· · · · · · I'm asking, what's the priority?· Is it

24· work?· Is it a parking garage?

25· · · · · · On 21-588 Main Street, just below Maui
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·1· Medical Group is Wailuku Townhouse, an eight-story

·2· townhouse with an elevator shaft that'll make it

·3· nine.· On the ground floor is business, and from the

·4· second up is townhouses.· Again, bold.

·5· · · · · · I'm assuming Main Street buildings were

·6· built in the early '70s.· That might have been

·7· considered bold back then.· Today, I ask you for what

·8· is needed.

·9· · · · · · At the start of my testimony, I mentioned

10· that I'm a lifelong resident.· That's key.· There

11· is less than us remaining, and mostly it's not by

12· choice.· We are at -- past the moment of fight or

13· flight.

14· · · · · · I support all homes.· We need upper-end

15· homes for doctors and engineers.· We need rentals and

16· everything in between.· I support what's coming

17· before you today including Lilua -- Liloa Senior

18· Housing and Harukiyuni's (phonetic) two-year time

19· extension.

20· · · · · · In ending, it was just mentioned that Queen

21· Kaahumanu Shopping Center is 50 years old.· What's

22· going to happen in the next 50?

23· · · · · · Mahalo for serving.· I humbly ask for your

24· support.

25· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Thank you, Mr. Uu.
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·1· · · · · · Commissioners, any questions?

·2· · · · · · Okay.· Seeing none, thank you.

·3· · · · · · MR. UU:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· Jason Economou, please

·5· step to the podium.· State your name for the record

·6· and three minutes will begin.

·7

·8· Jason Economou testified as follows:

·9· · · · · · MR. ECONOMOU:· Good morning, Chair.· Good

10· morning, commissioners.· Good morning, Director.· My

11· name is Jason Economou.· I am a local attorney and

12· consultant, and I have been a keen observer of

13· housing policy and land use regulation in Hawaii for

14· many years now.

15· · · · · · I specialize in land use regulation and

16· housing policy.· I've advised the Council for Native

17· Hawaiian Advancement.· I've advised FEMA.· I've

18· graded the affordable housing fund applications for

19· the County of Maui.· I've been a part of the

20· Kaahumanu Transit Corridor Steering Committee.· I've

21· advised on the Maui County community -- or

22· Comprehensive Affordable Housing Plan.· I've done all

23· this stuff.

24· · · · · · And with all of that background knowledge,

25· I'm going to disagree with Bruce that this is a
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·1· difficult decision.· This is not a difficult

·2· decision.

·3· · · · · · There are going to be opportunities to

·4· dicker about the details of this.· There's going to

·5· be plenty of public hearings to determine what type

·6· of housing should go there, how many units, how tall

·7· it should be, how many parking spaces.· We shouldn't

·8· get into the weeds about thinking about all of that

·9· right now.

10· · · · · · Right now, the question is will we open the

11· possibility of discussing housing in the center of an

12· urban area where there's already thousands of housing

13· units?· There's public transportation, there's access

14· to groceries, there's access to the port, there's

15· access to the beach, there's access to the YMCA,

16· there's access to everything that a community needs

17· within walking distance.

18· · · · · · The only question right now is will we

19· potentially allow housing at some point in this area?

20· And I think that's an easy question.· If you ask the

21· community, if you ask anybody in this room, I think

22· if they're sensible, they should say, yes, we should

23· discuss putting housing there.

24· · · · · · But the first impediment to that is

25· changing the land use designation.· I have been a
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·1· resident of Wailuku for some time now.· I live in

·2· Paukukalo; it's a residential neighborhood.· I've

·3· been misfortunate enough to live next to a neighbor

·4· who was doing a heavy industrial activity, and the

·5· planning department did nothing to help me.· We had

·6· to deal with it, and it was miserable.

·7· · · · · · For the sake of the community that

·8· surrounds the Queen Kaahumanu Center, I beg you, just

·9· change the zoning for their sake because heavy

10· industrial zoning is terrible to live beside.· Those

11· uses are not for this area.

12· · · · · · Changing the zoning now will still allow

13· for all of the uses that we have enjoyed in that area

14· and will continue to enjoy in that area.· But it will

15· also open the possibility for much-needed housing

16· which will leverage the infrastructure that already

17· exists, because all of you planning commissioners I

18· think are aware, Maui County is not very good at

19· building new infrastructure.

20· · · · · · So why not leverage the infrastructure we

21· already have for something more important than dead

22· retail spaces?· Thank you.

23· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· You must've timed yourself

24· before you came.

25· · · · · · Commissioners, any questions?
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·1· · · · · · All right.· Seeing none, thank you, Jason.

·2· · · · · · MR. ECONOMOU:· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· All right, Mr. Higa.· You're

·4· up next.· When you get to the mic, please state your

·5· full name for the record and your three minutes will

·6· begin.

·7

·8· Sterling Higa testified as follows:

·9· · · · · · MR. HIGA:· Thank you, Chair.· My name is

10· Sterling Higa.· I live in Haiku with my wife and our

11· four children.· One of those children is in the room,

12· so, for the first time, I'm not the youngest person

13· in a planning commission meeting.

14· · · · · · I'm testifying on behalf of Housing

15· Hawaii's Future in support of Council Resolution

16· Number 23-221 changing the zoning of Queen Kaahumanu

17· Center from light industrial to business and

18· commercial zoning.· I'll keep it brief for

19· Chair Pali's sake.

20· · · · · · So, first, our county has a housing crisis,

21· as we all know, and there are only three solutions.

22· We either build out, we build up, or we build in.

23· Out is sprawl, up is height, and in means infill and

24· redevelopment.· This is building (no audio).

25· · · · · · Second, if nothing changes, this shopping
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·1· center will die like Maui Marketplace before it.

·2· This isn't a hypothetical.· As you saw in the

·3· slideshow, and as we know, this has happened across

·4· the United States.

·5· · · · · · This mall will die.· You can go walk

·6· through the mall, you can walk through the parking

·7· lot and know that it's going to die.· If it dies,

·8· it's just going to stay dead like Maui Marketplace

·9· is.· That's blight.· It's land that could be used for

10· anything other than a vacant parking lot and empty

11· buildings that will not provide housing for the

12· people of Maui.

13· · · · · · Third, mixed use is both the past and the

14· future of Maui.· All successful cities in human

15· history have allowed -- all successful cities in

16· human history have allowed mixed uses.· It's only in

17· the last century that Americans decided to recreate

18· cities and urban design around the automobile.· And

19· we know now that that was a mistake.

20· · · · · · Maui zoning code is based on that flawed

21· understanding of urban design.· We have to bring

22· mixed uses back together, back into our urban and

23· town cores if we want to have a good future for our

24· children.

25· · · · · · I urge you to support this project.· This
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·1· is, like Jason said, one of those rare moments where

·2· it's not decisive or controversial.· It's the obvious

·3· thing to do.· Thank you for your support.

·4· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Thanks, Mr. Higa.

·5· Questions for Mr. Higa, commissioners?· Very clear

·6· and very precise, thank you, sir.

·7· · · · · · All right, we have, I think, on the line,

·8· County Councilmember Tasha Kama.· If you can hear me,

·9· it is your time to testify.· You can unmute yourself

10· and, if you'd like, show your video.

11

12· Councilmember Tasha Kama testified as follows:

13· · · · · · COUNCILMEMBER KAMA:· Aloha kakahiaka, Chair

14· Pali and members of the Maui Planning Commission.· My

15· name is Tasha Kama, and I am the Kahului

16· councilmember.

17· · · · · · So I want to thank you first of all for the

18· opportunity to submit testimony in support of land

19· use entitlements for the Queen Kaahumanu Center

20· Community Center Revitalization and Infill Project in

21· Kahului, Maui, Hawaii.

22· · · · · · Over the past few years, I've had many

23· discussions with the owners of Queen Kaahumanu Center

24· about their desire to pursue the -- the construction

25· of multifamily housing and commercial revitalization.
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·1· Enacting ordinances to provide necessary land use

·2· entitlements is the first step to achieving that

·3· goal.

·4· · · · · · As commerce continues to evolve, fewer and

·5· fewer shoppers use in-person stores.· As such, the

·6· QKC owners are seeking to make more productive use of

·7· their property by transforming some of their portions

·8· into much-needed housing.· I believe QKC is a great

·9· site for future housing because of its central

10· location along the Kaahumanu Avenue Corridor, its

11· proximity to public transportation, and physical

12· infrastructure and the number of potential units that

13· could be accommodated.

14· · · · · · For these reasons, I believe this proposal

15· has the potential to provide tremendous public

16· benefit for the community as a whole.· The QKC owners

17· have engaged with the community to include their

18· feedback into potential site plans.· Based on the

19· input the owners have received, they intend to

20· transform the property into a mixed-use site with

21· residential, retail, office, service, and open

22· spaces.

23· · · · · · Resolution 23-221, which I introduced to

24· initiate the necessary land use entitlement, was

25· heard at the October 20th, 2023, council meeting.
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·1· The resolution received support from testifiers and

·2· councilmembers.

·3· · · · · · As I stated at the meeting, it is my hope

·4· that the commission provides a positive

·5· recommendation that QKC can evolve with our

·6· community's changing needs by creating new housing

·7· and commercial opportunities for generations to come.

·8· The resolution was adopted in an FD1 version by an

·9· 8 to 0 vote with one councilmember excused.

10· · · · · · The constant support reflects the

11· community's interests in the provision of affordable

12· housing in areas that are already urbanized.· This

13· proposal is also consistent with several policies in

14· the Maui County General Plan, including the

15· following, quote:

16· · · · · · Promote infill housing and urban areas at

17· scales that capitalize on existing infrastructure,

18· lower development costs, and are consistent with the

19· existing or design patterns of development.

20· · · · · · I appreciate the department of planning's

21· thorough analysis and respectfully urge the

22· commission to follow the department's

23· recommendations.· Thank you for your consideration.

24· · · · · · My testimony, should you have any

25· questions, please contact me or my legislative
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·1· analyst, Paige Greco, at (808) 270-7660.· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you, Councilmember.  I

·3· just appreciate you being here, and I appreciate

·4· your just moving forward in this.· So thank you for

·5· all the work you've done.

·6· · · · · · Commissioners, any question?· No questions?

·7· Okay.· Thank you.· Appreciate you being here.

·8· · · · · · All right.· Next testifier, we have a

·9· Jennifer Salisbury.· If you can hear my voice and are

10· online, please state your name for the record, and

11· your three minutes will start.

12· · · · · · And real quick --

13· · · · · · MS. SALISBURY:· Aloha mai --

14· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· That's okay.· Go ahead,

15· Jennifer.

16

17· Jennifer Salisbury testified as follows:

18· · · · · · MS. SALISBURY:· Aloha, my name is

19· Dr. Jennifer Salisbury.· My husband and I are

20· licensed general contractors here on Maui.· We are

21· housing providers, builders, and developers.

22· · · · · · We are always looking for innovative ways

23· to utilize our existing infrastructure and our

24· existing buildings to provide more housing here on

25· Maui.· I think this is a brilliant idea to utilize
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·1· existing space at Queen Kaahumanu Mall.· I'm hoping

·2· that we're going to utilize this model in other

·3· places, like Maui Marketplace where we have

·4· commercial buildings sitting empty, for housing.

·5· · · · · · Chair, I cannot stress how much I am in

·6· favor of this and this innovation.· This is a huge

·7· step for Maui County.· I support this wholeheartedly.

·8· Mahalo.

·9· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Thank you.· Any

10· questions for Ms. Salisbury?· I'll just call you

11· Salisbury like the Salisbury steak.· I'm so sorry.

12· · · · · · Any questions for Jennifer, Dr. Jennifer?

13· All right.· Seeing none, thank you for your

14· testimony.· All right.

15· · · · · · If you are online and you did not get a

16· chance to testify, this is your time.· Also, if

17· you're calling in via phone and cannot utilize the

18· chat function, this is also a time for you to unmute

19· yourself, say hello, introduce yourself, and then

20· you'll have three minutes to testify.· So we will

21· give those users and attendees an opportunity to do

22· so.

23· · · · · · We are on public hearing Item B1, and we

24· are ready to close public testimony unless there are

25· others who would like to testify.· Okay.· Seeing
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·1· none, let the record show that we are closing public

·2· testimony.

·3· · · · · · All right, commissioners.· I'm just going

·4· to go ahead and go through the roll here, and we'll

·5· go through it twice.· And if you have questions,

·6· you'll have a first pass and a second pass.

·7· · · · · · I'll start with Commissioner Hipolito.· Do

·8· you have any questions for any of the presenters

·9· today?

10· · · · · · COMMISSIONER HIPOLITO:· Not at the moment.

11· Thank you, Chair.

12· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· And I do want to --

13· again, for time's sake, I do want to reiterate that

14· while other questions that will be dealt with through

15· different processes are good, today we are

16· specifically focused on the requests at hand.

17· · · · · · And it has been evident in the presentation

18· that there are no specifics to detail, the future,

19· just setting up the zoning and the code and the

20· general plan to align with whatever the future looks

21· like.· So while you might be tempted to have

22· questions on size and buildings, you know, we don't

23· have that information, if you didn't catch that by

24· some chance.

25· · · · · · And so if you have questions about the
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·1· zoning change and what's presented today, if we could

·2· try to limit the questions to that.· And you know,

·3· general questions are fine, too, but remember, we

·4· don't have answers to those things yet.

·5· · · · · · So, Commissioner Lindsey, any questions?

·6· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· I'm not sure if I

·7· fall in or an out -- in or out of what you were just

·8· saying.

·9· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· That's okay.

10· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· I'm just letting you

11· know, Chair.· The presenter mentioned a 90-foot

12· limitation driven by community.· What was the

13· original height that it was planned for?

14· · · · · · Or you said a height, but I missed the

15· number.· And then you said the 90 feet was preferred

16· by community; is that correct?

17· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Correct.· That's a great

18· question.

19· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· That's correct.· You know,

20· when you say --

21· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· State your name for the

22· record.

23· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Michael Summers.· Yeah.

24· When you say "community," I mean, we're a broad

25· community.· So, you know, you're going to get some
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·1· folks that say, hey, we want 144 feet.· You're going

·2· to get some folks that say, well, you know, we'd like

·3· 60 feet.

·4· · · · · · Okay.· So I just want to make it clear that

·5· we're not characterizing the entire community.

·6· But --

·7· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Appreciate that.

·8· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Right.· And 90 feet is

·9· less than what is permitted in the central business

10· district which is 144 feet.· It's consistent with the

11· neighboring B-2 community district zoning that's

12· currently available at Kahului Shopping Center, Maui

13· Mall, et cetera.

14· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· 144?

15· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· 90 feet.

16· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Oh, I think her question was

17· what was allowed currently before you --

18· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· 144.

19· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· I wanted to make sure her

20· question was answered.

21· · · · · · Anything else, Commissioner Lindsey?

22· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Okay.· So this

23· 90-foot number was created by you folks, given our

24· unique situation?

25· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· It was created recognizing
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·1· that 90 feet would be appropriate given the unique

·2· characteristics of the site and our existing codes

·3· and public input.

·4· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Thank you.· No more

·5· questions, Chair.

·6· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Very good question.

·7· · · · · · Commissioner Kealoha?

·8· · · · · · COMMISSIONER KEALOHA:· I don't have any

·9· questions.· Thank you.

10· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Commissioner Deakos?

11· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Chair?

12· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Yes --

13· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Chair --

14· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· -- Mr. Hopper?

15· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Just -- this is Michael

16· Hopper.· I just wanted to add a bit to the

17· discussion.

18· · · · · · There was a discussion of the 90-foot

19· limit.· I think the developer referred -- referred to

20· this, but in your resolution that transmitted this to

21· you, there is an Exhibit B to the resolution that has

22· several proposed conditions.· And one of them does

23· have a building height in the B-3 central

24· business-zoned area limitation of 90 feet.· The

25· intent would be to have that recorded and have that
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·1· condition run with the land.

·2· · · · · · With changes in zoning, normally you would

·3· change the zoning, and then any of the uses or the

·4· development standards in that zoning district would

·5· be allowed without further approvals unless you --

·6· you recommend to the council or the council adopts

·7· limitations to that.

·8· · · · · · So while there might not be any specific

·9· proposals, you know, that's something that the

10· council can do to sort of -- you know, if, for

11· example, the 140-foot height is too large, you could

12· have that as a limitation.· And that's done from time

13· to time and something you can recommend on.

14· · · · · · While the (indiscernible) permit process is

15· another review process, generally the -- the types of

16· conditions or items to look at are a bit more limited

17· than the change in zoning or Community Plan Amendment

18· changes because they're limited to coastal zone

19· impacts.· So I think the change in zoning is -- that

20· gives you a bit broader authority for conditions and

21· for review of the possible items that could be there.

22· · · · · · And so I would, you know, say -- and the

23· planning department could maybe say, if this is part

24· of their recommendation when they get to it, look at

25· those conditions, there are four of them.· You could

https://idepohawaii.com/


·1· discuss with the developer.· You have the ability to

·2· recommend further conditions.· If you don't like the

·3· conditions, change them.

·4· · · · · · But I just wanted to bring that to your

·5· reference because it looks like this resolution comes

·6· along with some conditions that the council is -- is

·7· requesting you look at and looking for your

·8· recommendation on.· So I just wanted to add that.

·9· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you, Mr. Hopper.· So,

10· commissioners, if you pull up the letter dated

11· October 23rd, 2023, and this has been issued.

12· It's -- it's also labeled Exhibit 1 in your packet.

13· You've got the actual resolution.· You've got Exhibit

14· A which is also numbered at the bottom 1 through 11.

15· · · · · · And right after that, you're going to see

16· Exhibit B which are the conditions that Mr. Hopper

17· was referring to.· And so that's Number 1, Condition

18· Number 1, that the building heights must not exceed

19· 90 feet.· Okay.

20· · · · · · Think I was with Commissioner Kealoha.· Oh,

21· you said you -- did you have questions?· I don't

22· know if -- I don't remember if I asked you or not.

23· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· No, I didn't have

24· any questions.

25· · · · · · But that was very helpful, Mr. Hopper.
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·1· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Commissioner Deakos?

·3· · · · · · COMMISSIONER DEAKOS:· No questions, Chair.

·4· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Commissioner Thompson?

·6· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· Yeah, just one.

·7· And -- to the center, what's going to happen to the

·8· existing tenants out in the -- like the electrical

·9· contractor that are already in there?· Are they legal

10· non-conforming after this?

11· · · · · · Or are they -- there's tenants out there in

12· the parking lot already in the back where the

13· electrical contractor is, and there's some other

14· shops in there.· Are those industrial spots?· And if

15· so, what happens to them?

16· · · · · · MS. BISQUERA:· Kauwela Bisquera.· That's

17· not part of our property.

18· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· Oh, it's not?

19· · · · · · MS. BISQUERA:· No.

20· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· (Indiscernible.)

21· · · · · · MS. BISQUERA:· Not the electrical

22· contractors or that warehouse.· That's non -- it's

23· another landowner.

24· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· Oh, it is?

25· · · · · · MS. BISQUERA:· Yeah.
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·1· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· Okay.· Well, thank

·2· you very much for answering my question.

·3· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Don't go far.

·4· · · · · · Vice Chair Thayer?

·5· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Yes.· Thank you, Chair.

·6· I just have a couple of clarifying questions.· This

·7· is a no-brainer to me.

·8· · · · · · I'm just curious how many survey responses

·9· you got when you did the community survey?

10· · · · · · MS. BISQUERA:· Kauwela Bisquera.  I

11· believe we got over 580?· 580.· Yeah.

12· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Awesome.· And then I

13· think I just have a clarifying question for

14· Mr.· Summers.· In the amendment to the text of the

15· Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan, was it that slide

16· that you showed?

17· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· I spoke to it.· No, but

18· that slide was a summary, essentially, of what's said

19· in the text.

20· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Okay.· So it would,

21· like, amend the, like, policy statements that are in

22· the community?

23· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Essentially, right.

24· Creating -- creating a space for some guiding

25· principles for this Queen Kaahumanu Center area.
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·1· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Okay.· Okay.· And were

·2· those part of the council-initiated action?· Or were

·3· these suggested by you folks?

·4· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Well, they emanated from

·5· community outreach, but now they are part of the

·6· council action.

·7· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Okay.· Okay.· And I

·8· just wanted to clarify because it came up from one of

·9· the testifiers, I see it in our packets, but that

10· the -- in the future, any affordable housing would be

11· deed-restricted; correct?

12· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Right.· I mean, right

13· now, we have a workforce housing ordinance.· So any

14· workforce housing that's provided would meet those

15· requirements.

16· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Okay.· Thank you.

17· That's all for me.

18· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· Mr. Summers, I've got a

19· couple for you.· I need your help in clarifying point

20· Number 2 for Exhibit B:

21· · · · · · · · · · In the B-3 central

22· · · · · · · · · · business district-zoned

23· · · · · · · · · · areas, a minimum of one

24· · · · · · · · · · off-street parking.

25· · · · · · Can you just further clarify and elaborate
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·1· what the "off-street" means?· Because if you drive

·2· around Kahului, everybody's off-street parking, but

·3· can you just clarify what that means to this

·4· particular property?

·5· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Right.· So, you know, in

·6· our code, we have parking requirements.

·7· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Right.

·8· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· And, essentially, what

·9· it's saying is if you have a use and you generate a

10· demand for parking, you need to put that parking on

11· your site.

12· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· On-site; that's correct?

13· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Right.· So it's not --

14· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· So you're asking to utilize

15· parking on off-site?

16· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Well, it's a requirement

17· for on-site parking.· You have to provide parking

18· on-site; right?

19· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· But the term is "a minimum of

20· one off-street parking space."· So just to be clear,

21· you do not mean -- you are going to provide one

22· on-site?

23· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· (Indiscernible.)

24· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Sorry.· I just get -- when I

25· see "off-street," I'm like, oh, okay.
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·1· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· It is confusing.

·2· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· I want to follow up to that

·3· then.· So since we don't really have designs and

·4· really big idea -- I mean, we've got ideas, but

·5· they're just concepts at this point.

·6· · · · · · What I assume, that whatever you guys

·7· decide, whether it's an outdoor park or whatever it

·8· is that you incorporate, let's say incorporate in the

·9· parking -- the dead parking lots right now, do you

10· know if the requirement for parking for the retail

11· space that's still occupied -- I think you said about

12· 47 percent is still occupied with retail space and

13· shops -- would that -- and this might even be a

14· director question -- but would that still maintain

15· whatever the code is for that many parking spots for

16· that?· And then you would then add how many

17· residential uses, and then you've got to add the

18· park.

19· · · · · · So, in other words, you're not going to be

20· building out all this parking lots and then we lose

21· parking spaces and -- and then have a more off-street

22· parking requirement?

23· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· The parking code that we

24· have now stand (no audio) for units that are

25· multifamily, 1500 square feet --
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·1· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· You're adjusting --

·2· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· We're adjusting.

·3· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· -- for that use.

·4· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Right.

·5· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Very good.· Okay.· I just

·6· wanted to clarify.· Okay.· And I do have one more

·7· question about workforce housing.

·8· · · · · · Can you clarify that -- again, I know you

·9· don't have any plans, but are we talking -- when we

10· say "residential," are we talking rentals?· Are we

11· talking potential ownership?· Or is that a

12· discussion --

13· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· That's a discussion topic.

14· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· So not been had yet?

15· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Right.

16· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· All right.· Very good.

17· All right.· That's all my questions.

18· · · · · · I'm going -- last pass.

19· · · · · · Commissioner Hipolito?

20· · · · · · COMMISSIONER HIPOLITO:· No questions,

21· Chair.

22· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· All right.· Commissioner

23· Lindsey?

24· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· This is probably for

25· the department.· I know -- is -- so we will be losing
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·1· some heavy industrial-zoned property.· Is heavy

·2· industrial a need in our community?

·3· · · · · · Also, I know this is not the right place

·4· for it, but, as I understand, that would be also a

·5· need somewhere else; is that correct?

·6· · · · · · I just want to make sure we're accounting

·7· for, like, removing it off of the system and putting

·8· it back in somewhere else where it makes more sense.

·9· Because I know, originally, when we went over the --

10· we were -- it was at one of the commission meetings

11· and you -- somebody made a presentation about M-2 and

12· why it was here and it was where the -- they

13· process -- they can the pineapples or something, and

14· that's why it's there.

15· · · · · · Is there availability of this kind of

16· zoning outside of this area?· Or did we not figure

17· that out?

18· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· This is Garrett

19· Smith, Deputy Director.· There are other areas around

20· the county that do provide for heavier industrial

21· uses.· You know, generally speaking, there's been a

22· transition away from these -- these uses.

23· · · · · · Again, as time goes on, life and safety

24· considerations, you know, come up.· Things become

25· more clean.· And so we -- you do see transition away

https://idepohawaii.com/


·1· from heavy industrial to lighter industrial.· Given

·2· the port location, again, it was likely that some of

·3· the heavy industrial users were down in this vicinity

·4· anyways.

·5· · · · · · But, yes, to your point, there are other

·6· locations where heavy industrial is allowed and at a

·7· farther location from residential use.

·8· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Perfect, thank you.

·9· That's it, Chair.

10· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · Commissioner Kealoha?

12· · · · · · COMMISSIONER KEALOHA:· I think this

13· question would be for Mr. Summers.· How -- how -- if

14· it were, like, an apartment complex, how many stories

15· is 90 feet?· How many stories could you fit in

16· 90 feet?

17· · · · · · MS. CZEISLER:· Aloha.· It will vary.· You

18· could probably do up to nine -- that might be a bit

19· of a squeeze, maybe eight to nine.· That would be the

20· maximum that you could potentially do.· But you could

21· also do seven, anything up to that number.· Nothing

22· beyond.

23· · · · · · COMMISSIONER KEALOHA:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Any other questions?

25· · · · · · Okay.· Commissioner Deakos?
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·1· · · · · · COMMISSIONER DEAKOS:· I'm good.· Thank you,

·2· Chair.

·3· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Commissioner Thompson?

·4· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· Nothing more to

·5· add.· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· VP?

·7· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· No further questions.

·8· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay, great.· Okay.· So we

·9· will have the planner give us the recommendation, and

10· then we will go to vote and discussion -- I should

11· say motion and discussion.

12· · · · · · MS. FURUKAWA:· Okay.· So the department is

13· recommending approval with the conditions of zoning

14· imposed by the county council already in the

15· resolution for the Community Plan Amendment from

16· heavy industrial to business commercial and the

17· change of zoning from M-2 heavy industrial to B-3

18· central business district.

19· · · · · · The proposed actions are consistent with

20· the criteria, and we're asking that the commission

21· authorize the planning director to transmit the

22· record to the Maui County Council for further action.

23· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Thank you.· So

24· commissioners, in your packet right in front of the

25· blue page, it gives you good questions to ask
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·1· yourself.· There are six items.

·2· · · · · · And the question is do these things -- have

·3· these things been met?· Do you believe this

·4· application meets these criteria for change of

·5· zoning?· And so I'd like you to consider those

·6· things.

·7· · · · · · And whoever does decide to present a

·8· motion, I do need you to point to, in the record, why

·9· you're recommending whatever it is you're

10· recommending.· So the floor is open.

11· · · · · · VP Thayer?

12· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· I would like to make a

13· motion to approve without any additional conditions.

14· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· Do I have a second?

15· · · · · · Commissioner Thompson is the second.

16· Movant, would you like to state for the record --

17· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Chair?

18· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Yes?

19· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Chair, just for clarification,

20· you said "no additional conditions."· So the

21· conditions in the resolution would be included in

22· the -- in the recommendation on -- on the change in

23· zoning?

24· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Correct.· Yes.

25· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Okay.
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·1· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· I guess approve as

·2· presented to us.

·3· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· With conditions understood,

·5· but no additional.

·6· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Okay.· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you, Mr. Hopper.· He's

·8· always got our back.· Thank you, sir.

·9· · · · · · Okay, movant.

10· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Yeah.· So I would --

11· like I said, I think this is a no-brainer.· I'm very

12· glad this has come up.· I'm very glad that our county

13· council has made a move on this, like this is

14· everything that we, I hope, want and need as a

15· community.

16· · · · · · You know, like it's been brought up, this

17· is good planning principles.· It's mixed use.· It's

18· making better use of a community resource.· It's

19· revitalizing or creating the opportunity for

20· revitalization of this area.· It's infill.· There's

21· existing infrastructure.· It's close to everything.

22· Like it checks all the boxes that you would want in a

23· community.

24· · · · · · And for the change in zoning criteria, it

25· meets the intent of the General Plan and the
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·1· community plan.· It's consistent.· Well, you know,

·2· once this is done, it's consistent with the community

·3· plan and land use map.

·4· · · · · · It meets intent and purpose of the central

·5· business district.· It wouldn't adversely interfere

·6· with public or private schools, playgrounds, water

·7· systems, transportation, et cetera.· I think, in

·8· fact, it would benefit a lot of these things.

·9· · · · · · It wouldn't adversely impact social,

10· cultural, economic, environmental, or ecological

11· character of the area.· And, again, I think this

12· would actually be a benefit to all those things.

13· · · · · · And this doesn't do anything for

14· agricultural districts in -- within the way this

15· criteria is stated.· So, like, I am excited for this.

16· I think this should have happened a long time ago.

17· Thank you.

18· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · Thompson?

20· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· I concur and thank

21· our council for putting this forward.· Thanks.

22· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· I would like to open

23· the floor for other discussion, but I would like to

24· ask the movant if she would be open to a friendly

25· amendment.
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·1· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Sure.

·2· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· I'm not comfortable with the

·3· wording for Number 2, and I'm going to read it for

·4· all.

·5· · · · · · · · · · In the B-3 central

·6· · · · · · · · · · business district-zoned

·7· · · · · · · · · · areas, a minimum of one

·8· · · · · · · · · · off-street parking space

·9· · · · · · · · · · must be provided for each

10· · · · · · · · · · multifamily dwelling unit

11· · · · · · · · · · with less than 15,000

12· · · · · · · · · · (sic) square feet of floor

13· · · · · · · · · · plan.

14· · · · · · Sometimes when we're writing code, we write

15· in -- we use words that are opposite of what we're

16· trying to accomplish, and then we put a couple of

17· double negatives together to make it positive.· And I

18· don't like that.· I want it to be plain.· So I'd like

19· to propose the following change:

20· · · · · · · · · · In the B-3 central

21· · · · · · · · · · business district-zoned

22· · · · · · · · · · areas, a minimum of one

23· · · · · · · · · · on-site parking space must

24· · · · · · · · · · be provided for each

25· · · · · · · · · · unit -- each multifamily
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·1· · · · · · · · · · dwelling unit measuring

·2· · · · · · · · · · less than 15,000 square

·3· · · · · · · · · · feet of floor area.· For

·4· · · · · · · · · · those units measuring more

·5· · · · · · · · · · than 15,000 square feet or

·6· · · · · · · · · · greater, it shall meet the

·7· · · · · · · · · · current parking

·8· · · · · · · · · · requirements.

·9· · · · · · And I feel like since I asked Mr. Summers

10· that question and he confirmed that was his intent, I

11· would like to change the language so that it can be

12· plain and we can understand it.· And when we are no

13· longer serving, they know what we meant.

14· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Can I comment on that?

15· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Yes, please.

16· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Okay.· Well, off-street

17· parking is the way the zoning code is written, like

18· there is an off-street parking ordinance that is part

19· of the zoning code.· And I think that is the more

20· straightforward language, like "off-street" does mean

21· "on-site" because it's off the public right-of-way --

22· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Off the street instead of off

23· the property.

24· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Yeah.

25· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· So in other words, on-site,
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·1· off-site, on proper -- on-street, off-street.· Oh,

·2· geez.· Okay.

·3· · · · · · So what if, though, as we're changing, and

·4· later, someone goes back and changes that and we lose

·5· that definition?· I just wonder.

·6· · · · · · Well, can we ask Mr. Hopper?

·7· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Sure.

·8· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Mr. Hopper, can you help us

·9· figure this out?

10· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Maybe in conjunction with the

11· planning department.· I would also note that it's

12· 1500 square feet, not 15,000 square feet.

13· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Oh, sorry.

14· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· That would be significant.

15· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· Okay, so would it hurt

16· to do both to clarify?· Or --

17· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Well, what's -- well, I mean,

18· the -- the -- the parking ordinance is generally how

19· many?· How -- it's been there for decades, and I

20· think it -- it goes into what off-street parking

21· spaces that you have to provide for -- for a

22· business, for example.

23· · · · · · If you look at the ordinance -- I think

24· it's 19.36 B or C at this point -- but it has -- has

25· a list of all the different uses.· And for each use,
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·1· sometimes by square footage, sometimes by unit.· It

·2· talks about how many off-street parking spaces are

·3· required.· Now, I'm --

·4· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Is this defined, Mr. Hopper?

·5· Is off-street -- is there a definition in that code?

·6· If there is, then --

·7· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· I can look this up.· I just --

·8· I just would want to know is this intended to be

·9· consistent with or more strict than the ordinance?

10· Or is this intended to be less strict than the

11· current ordinance would be for that space?· Or does

12· the ordinance not define this?

13· · · · · · You know, some clarification from the

14· applicant I think would be --

15· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Mr. Summer?

16· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· -- helpful in exactly what the

17· intent is.

18· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Sure.· And it's intended

19· to be less strict.

20· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Less strict.

21· · · · · · Less strict, Mr. Hopper.· Mr. Hopper?

22· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· Yes, I see.· I'm looking up

23· the -- I'm looking up the off-street parking

24· ordinance --

25· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Let's go to Tara while you're
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·1· doing that, Mr. Hopper.

·2· · · · · · MS. FURUKAWA:· So Chapter 19.36B, it's

·3· titled Off-Street Parking and Loading.· But it says

·4· in the purpose and intent:

·5· · · · · · · · · · The intent of this chapter

·6· · · · · · · · · · is to ensure that on-site,

·7· · · · · · · · · · off-street parking spaces,

·8· · · · · · · · · · parking surfaces, and

·9· · · · · · · · · · maneuvering areas are

10· · · · · · · · · · provided.

11· · · · · · So (indiscernible) on-site, off-street,

12· yeah.

13· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· So would it be harmful

14· to just get rid of the word "off-street" and just

15· call it "on-site"?· Would you be open to that?

16· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· I-- I think that would

17· be confusing.

18· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Oh.

19· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· I think -- well,

20· because there is, you know, like, part of the zoning

21· code is off-street parking and loading.

22· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.

23· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· So to be consistent

24· with the code language that is the convention and in

25· use, I think off-street would be best.
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·1· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· But you also are one

·2· who champions, like, hey, just because we've done it

·3· for 50 years doesn't mean necessarily that's the

·4· better way.

·5· · · · · · So all I'm saying is if we have an

·6· opportunity to start paving the way for better,

·7· clearer language for regular people, I'm just saying,

·8· like, this is a good start.

·9· · · · · · But I will defer --

10· · · · · · MR. HOPPER:· One other issue, I think, is

11· that I think there's other ways to satisfy off --

12· off-street parking requirements other than being

13· on-site.· For example, I think you can have parking

14· agreements with other lots or things like that to

15· satisfy that, in certain cases, if allowed by the

16· director.· So that could -- that could limit that

17· potentially because I think under the code, there is

18· a possibility for -- yeah, 19.36B.100, offsite

19· parking:

20· · · · · · · · · · The director may allow

21· · · · · · · · · · off-site parking for

22· · · · · · · · · · required parking spaces

23· · · · · · in certain cases, so that would be

24· off-site, but still off-street.· So you'd be

25· foregoing that -- that -- that potential; not -- not
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·1· to say that's even a plan here.· But, you know, just

·2· to note that if you say "on-site," it seems like you

·3· would be restricting that option.

·4· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· If I may, I think

·5· that's my point is that we've talked about already

·6· this residential neighborhood aligning the area in so

·7· many ways.· We know the current congestion in those

·8· neighborhoods.· I do not want to open the door to

·9· allowing more congestion.· And so I think that was

10· just -- my intent is to make sure it's on-site while

11· off-street.

12· · · · · · Mr. Hopper:· Yeah.· I do -- I do think --

13· yeah, Chair, I understand that.· I do think that if

14· you see an impact -- potential adverse impact of this

15· project and want to be more restrictive in that case,

16· you certainly could.· I just wanted to make sure that

17· that was known.· But if that's the intention, then I

18· think you have the ability to do that, yes.

19· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Do you want to comment or

20· think about it?· I know I saw Commissioner Lindsey's

21· hand up.

22· · · · · · Okay.· Lindsey.

23· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· I think, Chair, my

24· concern with that is potentially having another

25· property that maybe doesn't have good street frontage
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·1· as a parking area.· And then this property which kind

·2· of has a large frontage on Kaahumanu Avenue and Wakea

·3· which are kind of major intersections here, where

·4· they can utilize their -- that property for housing

·5· and things where people need to exit without using

·6· parking as part of it.· So I'm requesting to keep the

·7· verbiage as is.

·8· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· I'm trying to track

·9· what you just said, but I do understand, ultimately,

10· you don't agree with my friendly amendment.

11· · · · · · Yeah, I -- you know, we saw the sheer size

12· of this project, and while I am 110 percent all about

13· it, I also am respecting the neighborhood around it.

14· And based off of the sheer size, I just don't see

15· them needing to intrude in other properties.· And if

16· they did, even if I changed -- if -- even if we

17· changed this to restricting on-site, they still have

18· an opportunity later to pitch that when they need it.

19· · · · · · This would only restrict it as an

20· automatic.· They would just have to come back and

21· say, hey, we have to acquire this other property

22· because that other property right now is not even

23· part of this anyway.· They would have to acquire it,

24· come back here, and we would get to have that

25· discussion.
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·1· · · · · · So this wouldn't necessarily automatically

·2· kill it, it would just preserve the intent of what's

·3· being presented today.· And that's why I think I

·4· would like that, but we can always vote.· And if we

·5· have a split in commissioners -- but, yeah, anyway,

·6· that's how I feel.

·7· · · · · · Mr. Summers, even though we have a motion

·8· on the floor and this would typically not be allowed,

·9· because you're helping with the discussion I'm going

10· to allow it.

11· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Okay.· I mean, as far as

12· the parking ordinance, I mean, I've been working (no

13· audio) six years, and you did confuse me when you

14· were going back and forth between off-street and

15· on-site, but, you know, I'm very comfortable with

16· off-street parking.

17· · · · · · And I think all of the (no audio) that's

18· how we think about, you know, parking.· And we

19· understand what that means which means that it needs

20· to be on-site.

21· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· So there's an automatic

22· known with the industry that off-street is on-site?

23· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Exactly.

24· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· Do you see the benefit

25· of allowing code to be understandable by a regular
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·1· person?

·2· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· I do, I do.· But I

·3· think --

·4· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· But --

·5· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· (Audio difficulty) also

·6· from the perspective --

·7· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· One second, Mr. Summers.

·8· · · · · · Someone needs to mute themselves.· I hear

·9· some interference coming in.· Appreciate it.· Thank

10· you.

11· · · · · · Mr. Summers?

12· · · · · · MR. M. SUMMERS:· Yeah.· So, I mean, in the

13· Maui (audio difficulty) Chapter 19.36, I mean, it has

14· a definition; right?· So everybody goes to the

15· definition.· It says off-street parking, it means

16· on-site.

17· · · · · · You know, if you change it, then, you know,

18· do you also have to create a new definition?

19· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Well, we're not changing it.

20· We're just simply using other terms that mean the

21· same thing.

22· · · · · · But it's okay, I'm going to let this go.  I

23· feel very comfortable that the intent is exactly what

24· it is.· I'm going to withdraw my friendly amendment,

25· and I want to -- for time purposes, we'll move on.
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·1· · · · · · But very good discussion, thanks for

·2· entertaining me, commissioners.· Okay.· So any other

·3· discussion?· And then we'll take a vote.

·4· · · · · · Yes, Commissioner Lindsey?

·5· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· I would like to talk

·6· through the 90-foot limitation because this property

·7· will be coming back to the planning commission for --

·8· as an SMA Major review, so they'll be coming back a

·9· few times.

10· · · · · · I will -- I'm considering -- I just want to

11· hear some discussion about the 144 limitation and the

12· 90-feet limitation.· I know that it is already in the

13· resolution, but I just -- I see how this is reducing

14· urban sprawl.· And, really, on Maui, in order to keep

15· our small-town identities, we need to keep urban

16· sprawl a little bit more limited so that we -- so

17· it's up, in, and out.

18· · · · · · And in this case, it would be up and in,

19· like one of the testifiers said.· And I feel like it

20· will be -- every project will be talked through if we

21· just let them be the project that they -- what the

22· plan was made to be, not limit them at 90 feet.

23· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Commissioner Lindsey, so to

24· clarify, you're saying that you would love to discuss

25· removing the limitation of 90 and considering taller?
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·1· Is that what you're saying?

·2· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Yes.

·3· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· Great.· All right.

·4· Commissioners, that's open for discussion.

·5· · · · · · I'm okay at 90 only just because the --

·6· Mrs. Queen Kaahumanu herself -- manager -- came up

·7· and said, hey, this is -- we're comfortable with

·8· this.· The project manager says, we're comfortable

·9· with this.· So whatever they're envisioning, they're

10· already saying that they'd like to work within it.

11· · · · · · I do see the value of maybe considering

12· looking at it higher, if they could put another one

13· or two more floors of residential, which is a great

14· need; I think that would be a good thing to consider.

15· But since they're coming in saying, hey, this is

16· great for us, that would be the reason why I would

17· just kind of accept it.

18· · · · · · But I do like looking past and in the

19· future, maybe looking at something that we can't see

20· quite yet, I do appreciate that.· But that's where

21· I'm at.

22· · · · · · Any other comment?

23· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Because it would

24· hope -- it would be a hope that this kind of was a

25· catalyst to maybe the neighboring properties to
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·1· develop in a similar manner so that it's a concise

·2· plan within the neighbors on the Kaahumanu Avenue

·3· frontage.· And they potentially wouldn't have the

·4· limitation because their neighboring height would be

·5· taller.

·6· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· It is my understanding from

·7· Mr. Summers that they picked 90 based off of what was

·8· already there in existence in the neighborhood, so it

·9· was a cohesive sort of mix.· But we can ask

10· Mr. Summers to clarify that if you think that would

11· be helpful.

12· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Yes.· It is what it

13· is now.· But, like, the properties next door are not

14· built out like they --

15· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Oh, so for future?

16· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Yes.

17· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· So maybe reestablishing the

18· new norm.· Got it.

19· · · · · · Yes, please.

20· · · · · · MS. CZEISLER:· Lemore Czeisler speaking

21· again.· I wanted just to say that the 90 feet was

22· picked.· It's a reduction from a B-3 height which is

23· 144.· It was picked (no audio) some respect for maybe

24· some people in the community that are not used to

25· height, and it was picked out of respect for that.
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·1· We would happily build higher if that was permitted

·2· and if it was palatable for this community.

·3· · · · · · At this point, we have a condition in the

·4· zoning that says the building height would preferably

·5· be within the lot, which means it's slightly away

·6· from Kaahumanu Avenue and towards the middle of the

·7· block, which is where the industrial neighbors are

·8· behind.· So it shouldn't -- it shouldn't impose on

·9· any residents -- you know, neighboring residents, and

10· it shouldn't be too imposing on Kaahumanu Avenue.

11· · · · · · So if it is agreeable to others, we could

12· make that higher and build within that, and it should

13· still be not too imposing.· But it is completely up

14· to this community and what they need and what they

15· want.

16· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you.· Okay,

17· commissioners, discussion.

18· · · · · · COMMISSIONER KEALOHA:· This is Commissioner

19· Kealoha.· Can you hear me?

20· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Yes, I can.

21· · · · · · COMMISSIONER KEALOHA:· Yeah.· I agree with

22· you, Chair, that -- I notice that the -- that 580

23· people survey, that's where that 90 feet came in, was

24· that people weren't comfortable with anything greater

25· than what it is now.
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·1· · · · · · And to me, nine stories is already making

·2· me feel pretty uncomfortable, so I'm comfortable with

·3· the 90 feet and not any higher than that.

·4· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you, Commissioner

·5· Kealoha.

·6· · · · · · Before I go to you, Deakos, I'm going to

·7· chime in with Tara the planner here.

·8· · · · · · MS. FURUKAWA:· So in the Wailuku-Kahului

·9· Community Plan, under the objectives and policies for

10· Kahului -- so Number 3B, it says:

11· · · · · · · · · · The low-rise character of

12· · · · · · · · · · the central business area

13· · · · · · · · · · should be maintained.

14· · · · · · · · · · Higher building area --

15· · · · · · · · · · higher building forms up

16· · · · · · · · · · to six stories should be

17· · · · · · · · · · sited in the central

18· · · · · · · · · · portion of commercial

19· · · · · · · · · · blocks.

20· · · · · · So I just wanted to bring that up.· I think

21· the next community plan we're going to be working on

22· is Wailuku-Kahului.· So that's something that could

23· potentially be changed in the future, or this could

24· be an exception because of the Chapter 2.96

25· requirement.

https://idepohawaii.com/


·1· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Okay.· Hopefully, that was

·2· helpful.

·3· · · · · · Commissioner Deakos?

·4· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Hipolito, your mic

·5· is on.· We can't hear.

·6· · · · · · COMMISSIONER DEAKOS:· Thank you, Chair.  I

·7· was just going to echo -- we did hear what the

·8· community -- obviously, they went back and forth.

·9· People wanted the high; people wanted the low.

10· · · · · · So they kind of targeted something in the

11· middle so I'd hate to go against what was kind of

12· hashed out with the community surveys.· So I'm

13· comfortable with the recommendation that we have

14· currently at 90 feet.

15· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Okay.

16· · · · · · Commissioner Hipolito?

17· · · · · · COMMISSIONER HIPOLITO:· Ditto here.· I'm

18· comfortable with the 90 feet, Chair.

19· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Great.· Okay.

20· · · · · · Commissioner Thompson?

21· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· Yeah.· I'm

22· comfortable with 90.

23· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· And VP and movant Thayer?

24· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Yeah.· I -- I have the

25· same feeling as Commissioner Kealoha where I read the
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·1· 90 feet and thinking nine stories -- I'm like, that's

·2· as big -- well, it's sort of like as big as the

·3· county building which is the biggest building we

·4· have, and to have that be the only tall thing in

·5· Kahului I think would not be entirely keeping with

·6· the area.

·7· · · · · · I think the 90 is already a compromise that

·8· takes into account the sentiments of the community,

·9· and it would -- you know, if the surrounding

10· properties get built out, those are all up to 90

11· feet, and it would then be in keeping with the

12· surrounding area.

13· · · · · · But to your point, Commissioner Lindsey, I,

14· you know, get the need for building in which would

15· entail building up to be able to save everything

16· else, but I think 90 is a compromise.

17· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Yeah.· And I like the forward

18· thinking.· I like not thinking for our needs right

19· now but thinking for our needs for the next 50 years.

20· But I don't want buildings that tall in this area.

21· · · · · · Okay.· So as it stands -- oh, Commissioner

22· Lindsey?

23· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Just another thing

24· to consider -- and I know the decision was kind of

25· already made -- is not all buildings have these huge,
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·1· mass frontage, so it sounds like their plan is so

·2· it's 90 feet in the middle and then the outside would

·3· be down so that it'll be like three feet in the

·4· front -- I mean, three stories in the front and nine

·5· stories in the back so you wouldn't see, like, this

·6· frontage.

·7· · · · · · Like the county building is just a big

·8· thing in the middle of Wailuku, whereas like other

·9· buildings would be kind of tiered back so you don't

10· see that frontage, but it has the density inside.

11· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Cool.· I remain unchanged.

12· But thank you.· Baby steps; right?· Baby steps in

13· this -- yeah, edging up.· Okay.

14· · · · · · So if there's no other discussion, I would

15· like Mr. Smith to take a roll call vote on the

16· current motion which is as recommended with the

17· recommended conditions, no change in language.

18· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Vice Chair Thayer?

19· · · · · · VICE CHAIR THAYER:· Aye.

20· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Thompson?

21· · · · · · COMMISSIONER THOMPSON:· Aye.

22· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Deakos?

23· · · · · · COMMISSIONER DEAKOS:· Aye.

24· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Kealoha?

25· · · · · · COMMISSIONER KEALOHA:· Aye.
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·1· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Lindsey?

·2· · · · · · COMMISSIONER LINDSEY:· Aye.

·3· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Member Hipolito?

·4· · · · · · COMMISSIONER HIPOLITO:· Aye.

·5· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Chair Pali?

·6· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Absolutely aye.

·7· · · · · · All right.· Congratulations.· Thank you for

·8· being here today.

·9· · · · · · MS. FURUKAWA:· Thank you.

10· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Thank you, Tara.

11· · · · · · Yep.· We are going to take a ten-minute

12· recess, and we will be back at 11:05.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · (Whereupon, a brief recess was held.)

14· · · · · · CHAIR PALI:· Welcome back to the Maui

15· Planning Commission.· It is Tuesday, January 23rd.

16· It is 11:12 in the morning.

17· · · · · · And we were going to consider rearranging

18· an order, but we just have communication items.· So

19· after looking at it, I think we can go ahead and just

20· proceed as ordered because these should be quick.

21· · · · · · So, Mr. Garrett Smith, can you introduce

22· Item 1, please.

23· · · · · · ACTING DIRECTOR SMITH:· Yes.· For your

24· consideration this morning, we actually do have six

25· communication items.
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